
CITY OF 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 

Council Members 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

• Brenda Akelkok (Seat A) • Chris Maines (Seat B) • Bob Himschoot (Seat C) 

• Keggie Tubbs (Seat D) • Tracy Hightower (Seat E) • Paul Lied berg (Seat F) 

DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA- OCTOBER 10,2013 

David B. Carlson Council Chambers 
Dillingham City Hall, 141 Main Street, Dillingham, AK 99576 (907) 842-5212 

I REGULAR MEETING 7:00P.M. OCTOBER 10, 2013 I 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Regular Council Meeting - September 5, 2013 

IV. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Proclamation - Declaring National Friends of Library Week, October 20 - 26, 2013 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

V. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 2013-57, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Accepting the 
Certification of the Canvassing Committee Results and Certifying the October 1, 
2013 Regular City Election 

B. Swearing in Ceremony of Newly Elected Council Members (New Council Members 
Take Their Seat) 

VI. STAFF REPORTS 

A. City Manager Report 

B. Standing Committee Reports 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-17, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 17 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Add Section 17.33 
Establishing a Simple Procedure for Dedicating Rights-of-Way Dedicated for a 
Public Purpose 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

October 10, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 



VIII. CITIZEN'S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 

A. Kyle Belleque- 4-H Club 

IX. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

A. Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-17, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 17 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Add Section 17.33 
Establishing a Simple Procedure for Dedicating Rights-of-Way Dedicated for a 
Public Purpose 

B. Introduce Ordinance No. 2013-18, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Chapter 2.80 Public Library to Remove Library Board and Create a 
Library Advisory Board by Resolution and to Amend Sections Librarian and 
Violation of Library Property 

C. Introduce Ordinance No. 2013-19, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 1 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Create a Fine Schedule for 
Minor Offenses and Amending Other Titles of the DMC to Make Violations and 
Penalties Consistent with New Title 1 

D. Introduce Ordinance No. 2013-20, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Repealing Chapter 6.04, Transient Vendors 

E. Resolution No. 2013-58, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Approving 
Extending the Parks and Recreation Committee Until December 31, 2015 

F. Resolution No. 2013-59, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager to Waive the Purchasing Requirements and Issue Task Order 
No. 1 with Agnew::Beck to Assist the City with Identifying Options for Managing 
Material Sites within City Limits 

G. Resolution No. 2013-60, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager or Mayor to Sign on Behalf of the City for the Sale of Property 
Identified as Nina Nicholson Block 2, Lot 4 

H. Resolution No. 2013-61, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager to Contract with Unum Life Insurance to Increase Life Insurance 
Coverage for City of Dillingham Employees 

I. Resolution No. 2013-62, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
Boyd, Chandler & Falconer, LLP, the City Attorney, to Sue for Dishonored Checks 

J. Resolution No. 2013-63, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager to Negotiate An Annual Lease for Office Space at the Senior 
Center with the Bristol Bay Native Association (BBNA) 

K. Resolution No. 2013-64, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager to Advertise a RFP for Project Management Services 

X. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

October 10, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 



A. Citizen Committee Appointments 

1. Cemetery Committee, 4 Seats Open 

2. Planning Commission, 3 Seats Open 

3. Library Board, 2 Seats Expire September 30 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Declare a Vacancy on Council Seat A 

B. Action Memorandum No. 2013-28, Authorizing the City Manager to Accept the 
Homeland Security Grant for the Upgrade of the Security Camera Radios at the 
Dock and Harbor 

C. Action Memorandum No. 2013-29, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with for Appraisal Services for the Tax Years 2014, 
2015, 2016 

D. Action Memorandum No. 2013-30, Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with for One Mobile Water Supply Fire Apparatus 

XII. CITIZEN'S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public) 

XIII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

XIV. MAYOR'S COMMENTS 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Legal Matter 

1. Meet with Attorney Brooks Chandler to Discuss Pending Law Suits 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

October 10, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

The Regular Meeting of the Dillingham City Council was held on Thursday, September 5, 2013, 
at the Dillingham City Council Chambers, Dillingham, Alaska. Mayor Alice Ruby called the 
meeting to order at 7:20 p.m. A workshop at 6:30 p.m. to review the June 30, 2013 Financial 
Statements preceded the meeting. 

II. ROLL CALL 

Mayor Alice Ruby was present. 

Council Members present and establishing a quorum (a quorum being four): 
Brenda Akelkok, Seat A 
Chris Maines, Seat B 
Bob Himschoot, Seat C (arrived at 7:23p.m.) 
Keggie Tubbs, Seat D 
Tracy Hightower, Seat E 

Paul Liedberg, Seat F- absent and excused 

Staff in attendance: 
Rose Loera, City Manager 
Francisco Garcia, Public Works Director 
Carol Shade, Finance Director 
Dan Pasquariello, Chief of Police/Sergeant-at-Arms 
Jody Seitz, Planning Director 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Regular Council Meeting -August 1, 2013 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of August 1, 2013. 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously. 

B. Special Council Meeting -August 13, 2013 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of August 13, 2013. 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously. 

IV. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

There was no consent agenda. 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 1 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

Mayor Ruby commented under Executive Session item B would be taken up before item A. 

(Clerk Note: Bob Himschoot arrived at 7:23p.m.) 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve the 
agenda that was revised September 4, 2013. 

VOTE: The motion to approve the agenda passed unanimously. 

V. STAFF REPORTS 

A. City Manager Report 

City Manager Rose Loera reported on the following: 
Library Roofing - nearing completion; hoping to finish up the following week; 
Baffles Installed in the Sewer Lagoon - AkDEC had inspected the lagoon and reported a 
considerable positive difference; 
Animal Shelter- staff had moved into their new quarters although it wasn't completely finished, 
City will hold an open house when construction's completed; 
Fire Dept. Coordinator Position - still in negotiations with the perspective candidate; there was 
one other possible applicant; 
Dock Open - 1st barge since the repairs were made arrived earlier in the day; staff had directed 
the barge to not pivot on the corners; staff will be available when barges dock and depart; 
Other Job Announcements - two police officer positions vacant, and public works director 
started in his new position September 2; 
Planning Commission Resolution 2013-18 - recommending the resolution regarding the 
development of material sites to be vetted through the Code Review Committee; 
Wellness Program - program sponsored by the City's health insurance carrier required a health 
screening from the 24 employees that participated; the screening would be an annual event; and 
Airport Expansion - part of the project was to trade some wetlands for gravel, as a result the 
City would receive 1 ,000 tons of gravel; the gravel could be stored at the landfill and some of it 
used to cover cell sites. 

Mayor Ruby addressed PC Resolution No. 2013-18, commenting the resolution from the 
Planning Commission was recommending that the issue be vetted through Code to work out the 
different alternatives, such as requiring a land use permit, a separate set of codes, zoning, a 
development permit. 

Discussion: 
• commented the issue required technical expertise to assess the project and thought it 

would be better vetted through the planning commission that would be responsible for 
regulating, answered part of the vetting was to find out to what degree the city wanted to 
regulate; and 

• commented this was broader than Knik and encouraged contacting BBNC to see if they 
might be able to provide some expertise. 

City of Dillingham 
Regu~rCoun~IMeeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 2 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to move the 
consideration of regulations of material sites to the Code Committee. 

Mayor Ruby noted this item would be on the Code Committee's September agenda and would 
look to have a report to the Council by October or November. 

Discussion: 
• opined that the broader issue of resource extraction would be better placed with the 

Planning Commission; agreed at some point it could be their responsibility to evaluate if 
the City adopted a permit system, but they also realized the City needed to move forward 
with a minimal plan at the very least; and 

• commented hadn't detected a desire from anyone to shut down gravel extraction, just 
influence development. 

VOTE: The motion to move the consideration of regulations of material sites to the Code 
Committee passed unanimously. 

Manager Loera: 
• Grant and Fund Research - planning director was busy applying for a village energy 

efficiency grant for City buildings ($337K), and for the remaining funding for waste water 
treatment plant, and landfill; 

• Lobbyist Reports- mistake in the PIL T funding amount for FY13 of $811 should be $437; 
• Lutri (drug dog) -qualified to go back to work now that a patrol officer had been trained to 

work with him; 
• U POP EM Fireworks - owner of the fireworks stand at the boat harbor was asking the 

city to reconsider an earlier request to move its operation, noting had not found where a 
prior administrator had supposedly given the owner permission to remain there, and 
unless there was any objection would be confirming the City's position; and 

• Small Community Emergency Response Plan -working on it in house and will then invite 
in other agencies. 

Discussion: 
• asked to reconsider the new winter hours to remain open until 6 p.m. until 5:30 p.m. to 

make it easier to get to the landfill for those that work until 5 p.m.; 
• asked if the original issue with the fireworks stand was still relevant, answered the 

possibility of another fire and close proximity to the harbor remained an issue; 
• noted fishermen are always concerned about fires in the harbor, and at the Port of 

Dillingham Advisory Committee supported the City's effort to move it further from the 
harbor; 

• felt it was in store to meet with the owner and inform the City welcomed the business and 
was not asking them to move the operations outside city limits; 

• noted would be more concerned if the business was moved into a heavily congested 
neighborhood; and 

• asked if it would be in order to get an opinion from the Fire Dept. Executive Committee, 
staff to follow up. 

B. Standing Committee Reports 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 3 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

Mayor Ruby referred the Council to the minutes of the Code Review Committee enclosed in the 
Council packet. 

Finance and Budget Committee Chair Bob Himschoot thanked staff for holding the water and 
wastewater study workshop, and referred the Council to the minutes of the Finance Committee 
enclosed in the packet. 

Discussion: 
• commented the extraordinary cost of the sewer lift stations and people not receiving 

water and sewer service shouldn't have to subsidize the cost of the lift stations when 
they're not on it; answered one of the parameters of the study was that the systems cover 
their own O&M costs. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

There was no public hearing. 

VII. CITIZEN'S DISCUSSION (Prior Notice or Agenda Items) 

Tim Fritzler, General Contractor for Wolverine Supply reported he was attending on behalf of the 
U of Fairbanks Bristol Bay Campus project that required installing a tie in to the City's water 
main. He was asking if the resolution could have a definite date on the project for warranty 
work. 

VIII. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

A. 

MOTION: 

VOTE: 

B. 

MOTION: 

Introduce Ordinance No. 2013-17, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 17 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Add Section 17.33 
Establishing a Simple Procedure for Dedicating Rights-of-Way Dedicated for a 
Public Purpose 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to introduce 
Ordinance No. 2013-17 and set the public hearing for the next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 

The motion to introduce Ordinance No. 2013-17 passed unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-50, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Supporting 
the Reestablishment of the Alaska Regional Development Organizations 
(ARDOR) in the State of Alaska 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-50. 

Mayor Ruby reported SWAMC had asked municipalities to renew their support, noting although 
the legislators had not adopted the enabling legislation, the money was in the Governor's 
operations budget, and legislators had promised to take it up in the upcoming legislative 
session. 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 4 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

VOTE: 

C. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-50 passed unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-51, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City Manager to Negotiate an Annual Lease for Use of the City Property 
Known as the "Potato House" 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-51. 

Manager Loera reported the Council had given her authority to rent out the Potato House at a 
prior meeting. She had received three responses, and since GCI was the furthest along in the 
process, had offered them the lease. Further discussion noted the use fit the building design, 
and the lease was on a year-to-year basis with the possibility of extending it up to four years. 

VOTE: 

D. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-51 passed unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-52, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Approving 
Amending the BBEDC CBG Grant from Assessing the Downtown Storms Drains 
to Upgrading and Increasing Technologic Capacity Throughout the City 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-52. 

Manager Loera reported $60K approved earlier for use on the storm drains downtown was 
already incorporated in the State's Downtown Streets budget. She was asking the Council to 
use that money instead to increase and upgrade the City's technology needs, many computers 
were on MS XP which would no longer be supported sometime next year, many of them were 
out of warranty, software programs would be more consistent, and would start a replacement 
program. She noted the purchases would be shared with Curyung Tribe at the next MOU 
meeting. 

Discussion: 
• asked if this purchase could be justified as fisheries-related a requirement of the BBEDC 

CBG, answered another grant requirement was could it meet the economic standards of 
the community, felt it would since it would replace the library's six computers that failed 
this summer, provide connection to the water and wastewater treatment plant, and the 
landfill; and 

• concerned if the City had resources to help with training on the Windows 7 and network 
integration, answered would rely on Tekmate for their expertise. 

Mayor Ruby disclosed that she worked for BBEDC and administered the program, but would not 
benefit financially from this resolution. She clarified that for the purposes of this program, the 
way fisheries-related had been interpreted was if it supporting the infrastructure that supported 
the fisheries, harbor, landfill, dock. 

Keggie Tubbs disclosed that he worked for BBEDC and would not benefit financially from this 
resolution. 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 5 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

VOTE: 

E. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-52 passed unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-53, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the University Science Center to Tie into The City's Water Main on D Street 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-53 with guidance from staff did it need a date. 

Planning Director Seitz recommended in condition #4 (warranty work) due to the installation, 
suggest inserting "until June 30, 2015 or until DOT begins removing pavement, whichever is 
sooner". She noted the University was making the contractor responsible for the conditions in 
the resolution. The contractor noted it was urgent to get the resolution adopted because it was 
time sensitive. 

MOTION: 

Discussion: 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to amend the 
condition #4 to add until June 30, 2015 or until DOT starts removing the 
pavement, whichever occurs first. 

• commented did not feel the 4 foot wide install in the street to put in the 6" water line was 
much of a liability, and to allow the contractor to continue with the project. 

VOTE: 

VOTE: 

F. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve the amendment passed unanimously. 

The motion to approve the amended Resolution No. 2013-53 passed 
unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-54, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Authorizing 
the City to Apply for a Loan to the Alaska Clean Water Fund 

Bob Himschoot moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-54. 

Manager Loera reported the loan application would provide DEC the opportunity to conduct an 
independent review of the City's financial status, would not commit the City to the loan, similar to 
a line of credit, which would provide a 1.5% interest. The loan would be for a planning grant to 
show the City was serious about moving forward with a gasification system that would show it 
would improve the water quality at the landfill. It would also get the City on DEC's intended use 
list. The loan would be for $240K. The process would put the City in a queue for a larger loan 
later if needed to purchase the gasification plant. DEC wouldn't consider a loan unless the City 
started the planning process. 

She noted the money could also be used to update the Solid Landfill Management Plan which 
was being required by DEC whether the loan was applied for or not, and look into purchasing a 
scale at the landfill. 

Discussion: 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 6 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

• concerned the financial analysis might point out that landfill rates would need to be 
increased if it was a requirement to take advantage of the loan, similar to when the water 
and wastewater loan application was pursued. 

VOTE: 
G. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-54 passed unanimously. 
Resolution No. 2013-55, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Amending 
the 2014-2019 Capital Improvement Plan and the FY 15 Legislative Priorities List 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-55. 

Manager Loera noted this resolution would amend the previous resolution to remove the 
expense for storm drains downtown and to add dolphins at the dock to protect it. 

VOTE: 

H. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-55 passed unanimously. 

Resolution No. 2013-56, A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council Supporting 
Curyung Tribal Council's BBEDC Arctic Tern Grant Application 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve 
Resolution No. 2013-56. 

Mayor Ruby noted this was a formality required by BBEDC and disclosed she worked for 
BBEDC, managed the program, but would not benefit financially. Keggie Tubbs reported he 
worked for BBEDC and would not benefit financially. Chris Maines disclosed he worked for 
Curyung Tribe and would not benefit financially. 

VOTE: The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-56 passed unanimously. 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Citizen Committee Appointments 

1. Cemetery Committee, 4 Seats Open 

2. Planning Commission, 3 Seats Open 

3. Wood-Tikchik State Park Advisory Council 

Mayor Ruby reported there were no nominations for the Cemetery Committee or Planning 
Commission. She noted Jody Seitz represented the community of Dillingham on the Wood
Tikchik State Park, her seat was up, and she would be willing to serve again. The Governor's 
office required at least three nominations. Mayor Ruby suggested nominating several Council 
members as had been done in the past, give their names to the Governor, and hopefully he 
would appoint Jody again. Keggie Tubbs threw in his name, and she would find another Council 
Member. 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 7 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 

MOTION: 

Action Memorandum No. 2013-25, Authorize the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with Tekmate LLC to Provide Technical Support for all City Departments 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2013-25. 

Manager Loera reported the City had gone out to bid for a sole IT provider for all departments. 
Two firms had submitted a bid, the City distributed additional technical questions, and Tekmate 
was the only firm that responded. She was recommending hiring Tekmate who met the 
qualifications of the RFP. 

VOTE: 

B. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-25 passed unanimously. 

Action Memorandum No. 2013-26, Authorize the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with Bennett Enterprises LLC for the FY 2014 Aggregate Bid 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2013-26. 

Manager Loera reported this was an annual bid. Bennett Enterprises was the lowest and only 
bidder. The City would not need the pit run now that it had received the gravel from the State. 

Discussion: 
• commented it had been a few years since the City had multiple bidders; and 
• concerned that the sand was 50% higher than last year, answered the contractor had 

responded even though the City should go out to bid earlier in the year to allow more time 
to prepare the sand, it was getting more expensive to prepare. 

VOTE: 

c. 

MOTION: 

The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-26 passed unanimously. 

Action Memorandum No. 2013-27, Authorize the City Manager to Execute a 
Contract with Agnew::Beck to Provide Consulting Services for a New Public 
Safety and Fire Department Building 

Keggie Tubbs moved and Bob Himschoot seconded the motion to approve Action 
Memorandum No. 2013-27. 

Manager Loera reported the City had received two responses and after analyzing the bids 
Agnew::Beck had done the best job of addressing the RFP. Recently she found a third bid on 
her desk that was not addressed to the City Clerk, but to the City Manager, nor did the envelope 
identify the contents. She noted the instructions were very clear, and since the 3rct responder did 
not follow them, was recommending the City move forward and award a contract to 
Agnew::Beck, a qualified bidder. 

Discussion: 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 8 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

• noted had assumed the Council was going to determine the direction the City was going 
to take, answered the consulting firm would get the stake holders (Fire Dept., National 
Guard, State Troopers) together since there were differing opinions of what the building 
should be like, but the final decision would be the Council's; and 

• noted the parcel of land that the fire dept. was located on had been donated by Peter Pan 
for a Youth Center. 

Mayor Ruby noted there would be a core group of people working on it which would include 
several Council members. 

VOTE: The motion to approve Resolution No. 2013-27 passed unanimously. 

D. Parks and Recreation Committee Expires December 31, 2013 Unless Extended 
by City Council 

Mayor Ruby noted the committee would sunset unless extended by the City Council. She 
advised having the chair report in person to the Council, to include if they were meeting the 
expectations that they had advocated for, and a recommendation asking for an extension. A 
resolution would be brought back to the next council meeting. 

XI. CITIZEN'S DISCUSSION (Open to the Public} 

There was no citizen's discussion. 

XII. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Bob Himschoot: No comment. 

Chris Maines: 
• commented he was disheartened to see he was the sole Council candidate for this 

election and encouraged others to run. 

Keggie Tubbs: 
• commented he hoped other people would step up as well; and 
• noted he was disheartened we'd lost a lot of people in the community recently, 

combination of elders and young people, condolences to the families suffering losses of a 
loved one. 

Tracy Hightower: No comment. 

Brenda Akelkok: 
• complimented Chris on his nice radio voice, (referring to his interview for Council seat). 

XIII. MAYOR'S COMMENTS 

Mayor Ruby: 
• commented Brenda Akelkok's last meeting would be next month, and hoped she was 

thinking about the next cycle; 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 9 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

• noted she'd been getting calls about the mining project, had given the Council a report on 
the meeting she'd attended, and would keep working on it; and 

• noted she would be attending the SWAMC board strategic meeting in October and would 
appreciate ideas for how they could be more involved in issues. 

Discussion: 
• commented SWAMC had been helpful as capital projects came up, getting letters of 

support and resolutions and adding the project into their economic development plan. 

Mayor Ruby: 
• welcomed Pancho Garcia onboard as the new public works director; 
• thanked staff, noted it had been a busy summer, and was impressed with the City getting 

so much done; and 
• commented she was sad to see the loss of many other people in the community, 

especially when they are family members we know and are people that we work with 
every day, and to recognize a moment of silence for those lost since the last meeting. 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Personnel Matter 

1. Manager's Contract 

B. Legal Matter 

1. Update from the Public Safety Department 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to enter into 
executive session to discuss Personnel Matter, City Manager's Contract and Legal 
Matter, Update from the Public Safety Department. [9:13p.m.]. 

VOTE: The motion to enter into executive session passed unanimously. 

The Mayor and Council moved into executive session. Manager Loera, City Clerk Williams, and 
Chief of Police Pasquariello were included in the session under item B. Legal Matter, and 
Manager Loera was also included under item A, Personnel Matter. 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to come out of 
executive session [10:12 p.m.]. 

GENERAL CONSENT: 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

The motion to come out of executive session passed without 
objection. 

Mayor Ruby adjourned the meeting at 10:12 p.m. 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

September 5, 2013 
Page 10 of 11 



DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Approval Date: _________ _ 

City of Dillingham 
Regular Council Meeting 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2013 

Mayor Alice Ruby 

September 5, 2013 
Page 11 of 11 



DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

Qexecutfbe ~rotlamatfon 
NATIONAL FRIENDS OF LIBRARIES WEEK 

OCTOBER 20-26, 2013 

WHEREAS, Friends of the Dillingham Public Library raise money that 
enables our library to move from good to great -- most recently purchasing 
books and DVDs over this past summer and fall, and holding special 
events throughout the year; and 

WHEREAS, the work of the Friends highlights on an on-going basis the 
fact that our library is the cornerstone of the community providing 
opportunities for all to engage in the joy of life-long learning; and 

WHEREAS, the Friends' gift of their time and commitment to the library 
sets an example for all in how volunteerism leads to positive civic 
engagement and the betterment of our community; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, DO I, Mayor Alice Ruby, proclaim the week of 
October 20 through October 26, 2013 as: 

NATIONAL FRIENDS OF LIBRARIES WEEK 

Mayor Alice Ruby 
who has also authorized the seal of the City 
of Dillingham, Alaska, to be affixed to this 
proclamation 

Dated this day of October 10, 2013 



Meeting Date: October 10, 2013 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM, ALASKA 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-57 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING THE CERTIFICATION OF 
THE CANVASSING COMMITTEE RESULTS AND CERTIFYING THE OCTOBER 1, 2013 REGULAR 
CITY ELECTION 

WHEREAS, the Canvassing Committee of the City of Dillingham met on Election night and tallied the 
votes cast at the polls, and met on October 3, 2013, and tallied the votes of Absentee Voting in Person, 
Absentee Voting by Personal Representative, Absentee Voting by Mail, and Questioned ballots cast by 
voters; and 

WHEREAS, the tallies recorded by the Canvassing Committee are as follows: 

City Council Seat A; a three year term endinQ October 2016. 
Name I Poll Votes I Absentee/Questioned I Total 

Write-ins I 0 I 0 I 0 

City Council Seat B; a three year term ending October 2016. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Maines, Christophel 
Write-ins 119 1 120 

School Board Seat A; a three year term ending October 2016. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Write-ins- 17 0 17 
Tonya O'Connor 

School Board Seat C; a one year term ending October 2014. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Napoli, Chris 130 2 132 
Write-ins 0 0 0 

Ballots Cast on Election Day Ballots Counted on Election Day 

Absentee in Person Ballots Received 

Absentee by Mail Ballots Received 

Absentee by Personal Rep Ballots Reed 

Questioned Ballots Received 

Absentee in Person Ballots Counted 

Absentee by Mail Ballots Counted 

Absentee by Personal Rep Ballots Counted 

Questioned Ballots Counted 

Total Ballots Issued 

City of Dillingham 
Page 1 of 2 

Total Ballots Counted 

Resolution No. 2013-57 



Meeting Date: October 10, 2013 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Dillingham City Council that the October 1, 2013, 
Regular City Election was held valid to the best of our knowledge; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the results are certified as follows: 

1. That no one declared candidacy or filed a letter of intent as a write-in on Council Seat A, a 
three-year term ending October 2013. At the October 10 meeting, the Council will declare 
the seat vacant and advertise for letters of interest. The Council will have forty-five days to 
fill the seat. 

2. That Christopher Maines was elected to Council Seat B, a three-year term ending October 
2016, having received the greatest number of votes cast for this seat. 

3. That Tonja O'Connor was elected as a write-in to School Board Seat A, a three-year term 
ending October 2016, having filed a letter of intent and having received the greatest number 
of votes cast for this seat. 

4. That Chris Napoli was elected to School Board Seat C, a one-year term ending October 
2014, having received the greatest number of votes cast for this seat. 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Dillingham City Council on October 10, 2013. 

SEAL: 

ATTEST: 

Janice Williams, City Clerk 

City of Dillingham 
Page 2 of 2 

Alice Ruby, Mayor 

Resolution No. 2013-57 



City of Dillingham Information Memorandum R2013-57 

Subject: A Resolution of the Dillingham City Council accepting the Certification of the 
Canvassing Committee results and certifying the October 1, 2013 Regular City Election 

Agenda of: October 1 0, 2013 
I City Council Action: 

Manager: Recommend approval. 

City Manager: ___________ _ 
Rose Loera 

Route To: Department I Individual Initials Remarks 

X City Clerk I Janice Williams t?llfl) 
F1scal Note. Yes __ _ No --"X..::...-_ t! Funds :A.va1lable. Yes ___ No __ 

Other Attachment(s): 
• Official Tally Report 
• Minutes of Canvassing Committee, October 3, 2013 

Summary Statement. 
Since no one filed a declaration of candidacy for Seat A, Council, nor did anyone file a 
Letter of Intent as a write-in for Seat A, Council, the Council, according to DMC 
2.06.060 Vacancies, if a vacancy occurs in the Council, the council shall by vote of a 
majority of its remaining members, shall within forty-five days designate a person to fill 
the vacancy until the next regular election and until a successor is elected and has 
qualified. The term of office at the next regular election shall be for the unexpired term 
only. 

The City will advertise in the newspaper and post a public notice around town asking for 
interested persons to file a letter of interest addressed to Mayor Ruby in care of the City 
Clerk's Office by Friday, November 1, which will be within the 45 day period, or hold a 
special meeting before November 22, last work day in the 45 day period. The person 
selected will fill the vacancy until the October 2014 municipal election. To be a qualified 
candidate, the person must have been a resident of Dillingham not less than one year 
preceding the day selected by the Council and meet the voter qualifications. 

Page 1 of 1 IM No. R2013-57 



CERTIFICATE OF CANVASSING COMMITTEE RESULTS 

Regular City Election - October 1, 2013 

Ballots Cast on Election Day 

Absentee in Person Ballots Received 

Absentee by Mail Ballots Received 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM 
OFFICIAL TAllY REPORT 

October 3, 2013 

143 Ballots Counted on Election Day 

1 Absentee in Person Ballots Counted 

0 Absentee by Mail Ballots Counted 

143 

1 

0 

Absentee by Personal Rep Ballots Reed 0 Absentee by Personal Rep Ballots Counted 0 

Questioned Ballots Received 2 Questioned Ballots Counted 1 

Total Ballots Issued 146 Total Ballots Counted 145 

City Council Seat A; a three year term ending October 2016. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Write-ins 0 0 0 

City Council Seat B; a three year term endinq October 2016. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Maines, Christopher 119 1 120 
Write-ins 0 0 0 ! 

School Board Seat A; a three year term ending October 2016. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Write-ins- Tanya 17 0 17 
O'Connor 

School Board Seat C; a one year term end in~ October 2014. 
Name Poll Votes Absentee/Questioned Total 

Napoli, Chris 130 2 132 
Write-ins 0 0 0 

Page 1 of 2 October 3, 2013 
Canvassing Committee Meeting 



CERTIFICATE OF CANVASSING COMMITTEE RESULTS 

" Electfon Judge ' Date 

ro~ 

Election Judge \ Date 

Attest: 
\ 

~ 

,nlce Williams, City Clerk 
[/ 

Page 2 of2 
Canvassing Committee Meeting 

CITY OF DILLINGHAM 
OFFICIAL TALLY REPORT 

October 3, 2013 

Electi~ Judge Date 
~ ) ,, J 

l ~;.&J?C-KAJ~2 ID/3/r~3 
Election Judge Date ~ ' 

~JV-_ lJ (~L rob 
Election Judge Date 1 

October 3, 2013 



CANVASS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 3, 2013 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

Election Chairperson Pearl Strub called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

Canvass Committee Members Present: 
Pearl Strub, Election Chairperson 
Dana Clark, Election Judge 
Sherry Christensen, Election Judge 
Steve Foy, Election Judge 
Curt Armstrong, Election Judge 

Staff Present: 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Ill. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Steve Foy moved and Sherry Christensen seconded the motion to approve 
the agenda. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

IV. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

A. Questioned Ballots 

1. Tally Questioned Ballots 

City Clerk Williams referred to the Question Verification Voter form with comments provided 
by the Nome Election office. A review was made on each of the two (2) questioned ballots 
that were received. After the review, one ballot was determined to be eligible when it was 
confirmed that the voter was a registered to vote in Dillingham. The remaining ballots did 
not meet the Dillingham Municipal Code voter qualifications. 

MOTION: Steve Foy moved and Dana Clark seconded the motion to accept the 
questioned ballot from Perry Abrams. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

MOTION: Steve Foy moved and Sherry Christensen seconded the motion to reject the 
remaining one questioned ballot. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

The one questioned ballot will be included with the opening of the absentee ballots. 

City of Dillingham 
Canvassing Committee Meeting 

October 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 



B. Absentee Ballots 

1. Tally Qualified Absentee Voting in Person Ballots 

2. Tally Qualified Absentee Voting by Personal Representative Ballots 

3. Tally Qualified Absentee Voting by Mail Ballots 

City Clerk Williams referred to the Absentee in Person Register for the absentee ballots cast 
in person and asked the committee members to review each one and indicate those that 
they questioned as an ineligible voter, including living outside Dillingham City limits. City 
Clerk Williams informed the Committee that the one absentee voting in person ballot was 
listed on the precinct registration list. 

MOTION: Sherry Christensen moved and Dana Clark seconded the motion to accept 
the one (1) absentee voting in person ballot. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

There was no absentee voting by personal representative or absentee by mail ballots. 

The one envelope will be counted with the one valid questioned ballot. 

The envelopes were opened and the privacy sleeves placed on the table. A recount was 
made to verify there were two (2) privacy sleeves. 

The Committee determined to make a hand count of the absentee and questioned ballots, 
with one member reading the ballot, one watching while the ballot was read, one member 
tallying the votes, and one watching the tally being made. 

The election judges proceeded to taliy the absentee votes and confirmed the count. 

The ballot results were read aloud by Chairperson Strub and entered on the Official Tally 
Report. 

C. Write-in and Voided Ballots 

DMC 3.70.030, Record of canvass. The minutes shall indicate the disposition of all 
questioned, absentee, write-in and voided ballots. 
Voided ballots: There was one voided ballot. 
Write-ins: The one valid write-in candidate was Tanya O'Connor filing for Seat A on the 
School Board. 

D. Approve the Official Tally Report 

MOTION: Steve Foy moved and Sherry Christensen seconded the motion to 
approve the Official Tally Report. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

City of Dillingham 
Canvassing Committee Meeting 

October 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 



ELECTION TALLY: 

Seat A, Council 

Write-ins 

Seat B, Council 

Christopher Maines 

Write-in 

Seat A, School Board 
Write-ins-Tonya 
O'Connor 

Seat C, School Bd 

Chris Napoli 

Write-ins 

POLLS 

119 

17 

130 

0 

ABSENTEE 

0 

120 

132 

0 0 

E. Approve the Question and Absentee Voter Statements 

Janice Williams will present a statement which notes the voter's questioned ballot had been 
rejected and the reason it was questioned to Chairperson Strub for her signature. 

(Clerk Note: The official tally and the minutes of the meeting will be presented to the 
Council at their Regular Meeting, October 10 to certify the election.) 

V. OTHER BUSINESS 

There was no other business. 

VI. COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

There were no committee comments. 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

Election Chairperson Pearl Strub adjourned the meetin~ aLl2:31 p.m . 
.. · ) 

ATTEST: 

J 

City of Dillingham 
Canvassing Committee Meeting 

' . Jl·~ t;J ', __ , ...... ~~;I ' l !,·' ~--"-~ J ea ... , ,f &-"·~·~ • ...._/ ~-
Pearl Strub, Election Chairperson 

October 3, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

September 27, 2013 

Mayor and City Council 

Rose Loera, City Manager 

September Monthly Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

Animal Shelter - we are completely moved into the Animal Shelter. There are still a 
few things that need to be done such as storing the food, hooking up the telephone and 
sealing the cement floor. This all can be done while the animal shelter is in operation. 
We have been getting volunteers to come and help with the animals. 

Vacancies- we are still advertising for the Fire Coordinator position. The applicant that 
we brought up wanted housing and a vehicle which we could not provide. We continue 
to interview applicants. As of this report our Police Department will be fully staffed the 
first week of October. 

Dock - the insurance company has not made a determination yet whether they will be 
accepting our insurance claim for the damage to the dock. They are waiting for their 
engineer's report which should be out soon before they make a decision. 

Equipment- The snow-blower and F350 truck, approved in the FY 2014 budget, have 
been purchased and are on the barge heading our way. Both pieces of equipment will 
make the snow removal and sanding of our streets and bike paths easier for the Public 
Works staff in the winter. 

Fireworks - I have sent a letter to U Pop Em Fireworks indicating that she is allowed to 
stay at her current site as long as the business is operated by her. After discussing the 
issue with the Fire Chief and Port Director I felt that she is doing everything possible to 
keep the place safe and in compliance with State regulations. A copy of the letter is 
attached to my report. 

Planning Department - we have identified a number of construction projects, both 
commercial and residential, that were building without land use permits. We issued 
letters requesting land use permits and if they do not comply could result in a fine per 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 



our code. It is strongly recommended that we enforce land use permits in order for 
construction projects to be built within their lots and not on any easements. 

Emergency Planning - the City staff has started to develop a Small Community 
Emergency Response Plan (SCERP). We have identified the planning team that will be 
activated in the event of an emergency. As one of the ways to communicate to the 
residents in Dillingham we will start testing our Emergency Warning System that is 
located in 6 areas in the community. Testing the system will get people accustomed to 
hearing it and when there is an emergency will guide them to various media sources, 
including our website, KDLG, VHF, cell phone alerts, to find out what they need to do or 
to get up-to-date information. We are still working out how often we will be testing and 
will be seeking advice from the State. 

Senior Center Lease -we will be leasing office space for two Elderly Service staff from 
BBNA. They will be moving in during the month of October. Sr. Center staff are 
reorganizing and cleaning out the offices for them. This move will allow the elders to 
readily access the programs that BBNA offers and will be a big help for the Sr. Center 
staff. 

Homeland Security Grant - the City has been approved for a grant in the amount of 
$98,332.50. A resolution to apply for the Homeland Security grant was approved by the 
Council at the August 1, 2013 Council meeting. The grant is for the repair and upgrade 
of the security cameras around town. An action memorandum to accept the grant is 
included in your packet. The boat and motor that we also proposed was not funded. We 
will be receiving a certified packet with the grant award and attachments within the next 
couple of weeks. 

Attachment: Letter to Billie Benedict, U Pop Em Fireworks dated Sept. 23, 2013 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 



September 23, 2013 

Billie Benedict 
U-Pop-Em Fireworks 
PO Box 294 
Dillingham, Ak. 99576 

Dear Billie: 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

After some research and deep thought I have decided to reconsider our request for you to move your 
fireworks business from the current location. You have been there for 20 years, complied with the State 
of Alaska Retail Firework Permit requirements, made improvements suggested by the Fire Marshall, 
hold a $2 million insurance policy and have the required number of fire extinguishers. 

You will be required, as indicated in DMC # 8.08.010, to request a waiver for selling fireworks within City 
limits every time you are planning to sell them. You will need to continue to comply with our business 
license and sales tax requirements as you have in the past. 

Allowing you to remain where you are located is granted only to you. In the event that your business 
changes hands it will have to be relocated. We do not require that it be re-located outside of City limits 
but somewhere that is less congested. 

Thank you. 

Rose Loera 
City Manager 

·-~ --------- -·- - -
141 Mllinsireei:-·r:o~-soi889- .-Dilli-ngham, Aias!_<_a_22~7§ _ _ ______________ _ 

------· ----- CifyHall &Finance DepC(907j 842-52Tf~ Flrebepi84:i:2288-~I:TI:>ra-;:y/Museum 842-5610 
Police Dept. 842-5354 • Harbor Office 842-1069 • Public Works 842-4598 • Senior Center 842-1231 

www.dillinghamak.us 



~ 9/27/13 ~ 

SEPTEMBER 2013- LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
28th Alaska State Legislature"' 1st Interim 

Cliff Stone and Ian Fisk I City Lobbyists 

<><><><> 

GOVERNOR'S CORNER http://gov.alaska.gov 

September 12,2013, Juneau, Alaska- Governor Sean Parnell accepted the resignation of Department 
ofNatural Resources (DNR) Commissioner Dan Sullivan. Sullivan served as Alaska's attorney general 
from June 2009 until December 2010 when he was named DNR commissioner. 

Commissioner Sullivan's resignation was effective September 24. A copy of his resignation letter is 
available at: 

Subsequently on September 241
h Governor Parnell named Joe Balash Acting Commissioner of the 

Department of Natural Resources. Balash had been serving as deputy DNR commissioner. 

September 16,2013, Juneau, Alaska- Governor Sean Parnell accepted the resignation of Department 
of Public Safety (DPS) Commissioner Joe Masters. 

Commissioner Masters started his law enforcement career in 1982 as a public safety officer in the 
village of Unalakleet. He rose through the department becoming deputy director of the Alaska State 
Troopers, a position he held until his retirement in 2005. He was named commissioner ofDPS in 2008. 
Masters has accepted a job in the private sector and will remain in Alaska. 

Commissioner Master's resignation is effective October 15. A copy ofhis resignation letter is available 
at: 

September 20, 2013, Juneau, Alaska- Governor Sean Parnell announced the following appointments 
to various state boards and committees. See the governor's website for more details. 

Reappointed Franklin Roppel of Wrangell and Clay Porter of Anchorage to the Alaska Housing 
Finance Corporation Board of Directors. 

Appointed Lori Stender of Eagle River to the Emerging Energy Technology Fund Advisory 
Committee. The committee, created by the Legislature, makes grants from the Emerging Energy 
Technology Fund for demonstration projects of technologies that have a reasonable expectation of 
being commercially viable within five years, the objective being to test emerging technologies or 
methods of conserving energy or improving existing technologies. 



Appointed Rodney Brown of Fairbanks to the Alaska Workforce Investment Board. The board works 
to develop and oversee the implementation of a comprehensive state human resource investment 
system, and to promote an integrated system of employment education and training programs so that 
all Alaskans have the skills and opportunities necessary to earn a living wage, and to meet the future 
business needs of the state. 

Appointed Gina Poths of Anchorage to the Alaska Boating Safety Advisory Council. The council 
supports boating safety in Alaska by recommending educational materials, reviewing proposed boating 
regulations, considering Alaska's diverse regional boating safety needs, and promoting boating safety 
education programs throughout the state. 

September 16, 2013, Juneau, AK- Lt. Governor Mead Treadwell introduced Alaskans to the 
revamped Online Public Notice System (OPNS). 

The OPNS now provides an enhanced search capability, making it easier to find public notices and 
share information using a modernized user interface. 

Alaskans who log in to the system with their My Alaska accounts can save their searches, share them, 
use them as templates for future searches, and subscribe to them as email messages or RSS feeds. After 
creating and subscribing to search criteria, users will be automatically notified of any newly posted 
notices that match saved searches. The new system also includes links to social media, allowing users 
to easily share OPNS content, as well as the ability to submit formal public comment from within the 
OPNS itself. 

The OPNS may be accessed online at 

<><><><> 

NOTES 

1. September 5th- Resolution No. 2013-55 amending 2014-2019 CIP/FY15 Leg. Priority List 

In receipt of your amended resolution. 

2. September lOth- Resolution No. 2013-50 supporting ARDORS 

I received an email on behalf of Mayor Ruby from Janice with the Council's resolution supporting the 
Alaska Regional Development Organizations. 
(As a side note, I twice had the privilege of carrying this legislation for Rep. Alan Austerman during 
the 201

h and 2 F1 Alaska Legislatures. Both respective bills passed the House and Senate unanimously.) 

3. September 16th -Email to Rose on the Pebble Mine Project 

I forwarded a copy of a post by Alaska Fish Radio and the Anchorage Daily news regarding Anglo
American pulling out of the Pebble Mine Project. 

4. September 26th - Email to Rose on Legislative timetable and establish a teleconference. 

I contacted Rose to both inform her of a draft Legislative timeline coming her way. She proposed that 
we talk sometime the week of October ih to discuss further and finalize a draft to the governor on your 
list of priorities for the FY15 Capital budget. 

2 



5. September 2ih- Email to Rose with a list of2013 Legislative Process/Timelines 

<><><><> 

WEBSITES OF INTEREST 

2013 Interim Legislator & Staff Contact List: 

2013 1st Session Legislator & Staff Contact List: 

The full Legislative Publications List is at: 

Legislative Finance Website: 
This link provides you with several options to view specifics for the Capital and Operating Budgets. If you click 
on Capital reports, you can then pull up projects by house district. Dillingham is under H. District 36. 

Governor's OMB FY14 Budget Website: 

<><><><> 

I see by your website that the new Animal Shelter is now open for business in the newly renovated 
space in the National Guard Armory. Congratulations! 

We welcome input anytime as to what you would like to see in these reports, particularly during this 
time when the Legislature is not in session. Thank you for the trust you have placed in us. 

3 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

September 24, 2013 

Rose Loera, City Manager 

Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Subject: Monthly Report 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 2013-17 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

The following ordinance is scheduled for a public hearing at the October 10 Regular Council 
Meeting. An advertisement was placed for the October 3 edition of the Bristol Bay Times. 

• Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-17, Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-17, An Ordinance of the 
Dillingham City Council Amending Title 17 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Add 
Section 17.33 Establishing a Simple Procedure for Dedicating Rights-of-Way 
Dedicated for a Public Purpose 

This ordinance was recommended by the Planning Commission. 

State of Alaska Voter Registration 
Due to a recent event, it caused us to reevaluate the process for filing voter registration 
applications on the behalf of a member of the public. Between September 3 & 4, two 
members of the public (family members), one of them filing for a council seat, and the other 
questioning if he was registered to vote, were informed that they were not included on the 
precinct register. I double-checked with the Nome election, and confirmed neither was listed 
on the voter registry. As a result they were not eligible to vote in the upcoming election, nor 
could they run as a write-in or file a declaration of candidacy. Alaska State law requires a 
perspective candidate and/or a voter to be registered to vote 30 days before a municipal 
election. 

Currently voter registration applications are available locally at the Public Library, City Hall 
front counter, and City Clerk's office. An application can also be downloaded from the City's 
website and the State's website. The Nome elections office, our regional office, provides us 
with stamped envelopes to mail them in. The applicant can mail, fax, or scan and email the 
form and submit it themselves. As a courtesy, the City will fax in the completed forms. We 
have not scanned and emailed them, and given the confidentially of the form, do not intend 
to consider this as an option. I check the fax to make sure it's been submitted. It isn't 100%, 
but I've contacted the Nome office by phone to confirm thetve received the fax. The Nome 
elections office will process the applications the 3rd and 181 date of each month depending 

City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 



on if they are satisfied the form has been completely filled. They say to allow for 2-4 weeks 
to receive a voter registration card in the mail. 

Any of the seven state regional offices will accept voter registration applications, because 
they are processed statewide. The voter's name will then be placed in the correct precinct 
register. Nome will prepare and mail the precinct register after the 30 day period closes for 
filing for a seat in a municipal election. If someone registered to vote after that date, their 
name will not appear on the register. As a result, if the individual comes to the polling 
place, they will be directed to fill out a questioned ballot. Their ballot is enclosed in an 
envelope labeled questioned ballot. The envelope will not be opened unless the canvassing 
committee, two days after the election, judges that the person met the qualifications for 
voting. Registering to vote 30 days before an election is one of the requirements for 
considering the ballot valid. 

Going forward the library and front counter at City Hall can continue to hand out the voter 
registration forms along with a mailing envelope. If the applicant would like to have the form 
faxed, they will be directed to the City Clerk's office. The fax will be accompanied with a 
cover sheet asking the Nome office to please confirm receipt. The City Clerk will maintain a 
copy of the cover sheets for a period of time. The voter registration application will be 
shredded after confirmation is provided (a process we have adhered to in the past), since 
we do not maintain these confidential records. 

Standing ltem(s) 
Commission/Board Seats Vacant 

• Planning Commission - 3 seats vacant. We did receive a letter of interest from Ben 
McDowell that will be included in the council packet. 

The City began advertising in July to fill two open seats on the Planning Commission 
vacated by Terry Hoefferle and lzetta Chambers. Rachel Muir gave her resignation in early 
August. All three candidates have moved from Dillingham. 

• Cemetery Committee - 4 seats vacant. No letters of interest on file. 
The City began advertising in October of last year to fill 6 vacant seats. Two seats have 
been appointed. 

City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: September 24, 2013 

To: Rose Loera 
City Manager 

From: Carol Shade 
Finance Director 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

Subject: August 31, 2013 Financial Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

As of the end of August 2013, we should have received 17% of the budgeted revenues 
and not have spent more than 17% of the budgeted expenditures. The total revenues at August 
31, 2013 were 24% and total expenditures were 5.7%. In comparison, total revenues for FY13 
at August 31, 2012 were 24% and expenditures were 20%. Following is a schedule showing the 
comparison of revenues and expenditures by category: 

Category FY14 Budget FY14 FY14 FY13 FY13 FY13 
Actual % Budget Actual % 

Revenues 
General Fund $8,104,577 $3,273,141 40.4% $8,204,314 $2,607,138 32% 
Special Revenues 2,628,536 352,756 13.4% 2,967,446 288,203 10% 
Capital Projects 3,660,776 1490,097. 95% 1,326,640 139,478 11% 

Total Revenues $14,393,889 $5,115,993 35.5% $12,498,400 $3,010,372 24% 
Ex~enditures 

General Fund $8,044,870 $1,026,692 12.8% $8,304,017 $1,205,838 15% 
Special Revenues 2,532,744 305,031 12% 2,663,347 388,350 15% 
Capital Projects 3,720,979 31,565 .8% 1,325,840 838,858 63% 

Total Expenses $14,298,593 $825,378 5.8% $12,293,198 $682,421 20% 

As of August 31 51 we have decreased our real and personal property receivables by 
$372,359.55. This represents a 50.43% decrease since we started our increased collections 
efforts. 

From July 1, 2013 through August 31, 2013 the Payables/Purchasing Technician 
processed 116 purchase orders and generated $2,616,678 in payments for normal operating 
costs and grant payments. 418 invoices were received for payment and 204 checks produced. 

The Payables/Purchasing, Payroll/It Accountant and I started having a monthly meeting 
to review the City's Procurement Policies and forms. As we were reviewing code to see how our 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 



policies line up with the Municipal code we discovered that the code and the Finance 
Department Procurement Policy were not in alignment. The Procurement Policy would be the 
policy we would intend to continue to follow. It is our recommendation that this be added to the 
Code Review Committee's Task List so that we can bring the two documents into alignment. 

The Payroll/IT Staff completed two payrolls, worked with TekMate and completed thee
mail migration, worked with the Accufund technical support to clean up some payroll issues in 
the software, coordinated the biometric screening for the City employees and assisted with 
meetings to help select the best company for the City's IT support. 

The Grants/Receivables technician prepared 22 grant reports for the period ending June 
30, 2013. In addition she processed the normal monthly billing statements for the utility 
customers that went out in July and August. Continually keeps the receivables and property tax 
database up to date, with address changes and property owner changes as we are notified of 
these changes. 

The attached statements reflect the City's financial status as of August 31, 2013. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 



REVENUES: 
General Fund Revenues 

General Sales Tax 
Alcohol Sales Tax 
Transient Lodging Sales Tax 
Gaming Sales Tax 

Total Sales Tax 

Real Property Tax 
Personal Property Tax 

Total Property Taxes 

Telephone Gross Receipts State Tax 
Raw Fish Tax 
Nushagak Fish Tax (Proportion transfer in) 
Shared Fisheries 
Revenue Sharing (Municipal Energy Assist in '08) 
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PIL T) 
State Jail Contract 
Admin Overhead 
PERS on Behalf 
Other Revenues 

Total 
Total General Fund Revenues 

SQecial Revenue Funds Revenues 
Nushagak Fish Tax 
Water 
Sewer 
Landfill 
Dock 
Boat Harbor 
E-911 Service 
Senior Center (Grant) 
Senior Center (Non-Grant) 

Total Special Revenue Funds Revenues 

Debt Service Fund Revenue 
Asset Forfeiture Fund 
Dock and Harbor Capital Project Fund Revenue 
Road and Streets Capital Project Fund Revenue 
WasteWater Treatment Plant 
Force Main 
School Bond Project 
Library Grants 
Library Roof 
E911 Critical System Upgrades 
JAG Grant 
BBEDC (Various Projects) 
Equipment Replacement Capital Project Fund 
Ambulance Reserve Capital Project Fund Revenue 
Mary Carlson Estate Permanent Fund Revenue 
Landfill Oxidation 
Landfill Phase 3 

Total 
Total Revenues 

City of Dillingham 
Revenues and Expenditures As of August 31, 2013 

Unaudited Figures 

Year to Date 

Budget - FY13 Aug-13 Actual - 8/31/13 

$ 2,700,000 280,048 271,512 
265,000 26,935 208 

80,000 17,406 11,975 
65,000 2,662 (563} 

3,110,000 327,050 283,132 

1,500,000 1,578,813 
500,000 523,375 

2,000,000 2,102,188 

75,000 
263,000 
400,920 

33,000 
209,869 210,704 210,704 
419,516 422,987 422,987 
613,386 160,325 160,325 
348,137 
232,178 29,345 58,970 
399,571 25,562 34,835 

2,994,577 848,923 887,820 
8,104,577 1,175,974 3,273,141 

460,139 4,831 4,831 
217,781 14,230 29,438 
250,598 19,946 40,147 
354,228 14,634 39,712 
626,910 93,202 135,605 
242,414 2,861 32,031 

70,000 7,074 13,317 
118,290 51,991 52,380 
288,176 3,222 5,295 

2,628,536 211,991 352,756 

1 '176,090 

2,000,000 1,444,211 1 ,444,211 
33,656 33,656 

52,892 12,230 12,230 
243,000 

120,000 
67,294 

1,500 

3,660,776 1,490,097 1,490,097 
$ 14,393,889 $ 2,878,062 $ 5,115,993 

Previous Year 
8/31/2012 IINC/(DEC) 

Percent Actual Last Year 

10.1% $ 269,061 $ 2,451 
0.1% 59,103 (58,895) 

15.0% 17,475 (5,499) 
-0.9% 12,844 (13,407) 
9.1% 358,482 (75,351) 

105.3% 1,534,556 44,257 
104.7% 519,768 3,608 
105.1% 2,054,324 47,864 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

100.4% 210,704 
100.8% 422,987 

26.1% 120,632 39,693 
0.0% 

25.4% 58,970 
8.7% 73,699 (38,865) 

29.6% 194,332 693,489 
40.4% 2,607,138 666,003 

1.0% 1,108 3,724 
13.5% 32,333 (2,895) 
16.0% 46,333 (6,186) 
11.2% 29,406 10,306 
21.6% 107,886 27,720 
13.2% 29,692 2,339 
19.0% 10,962 2,355 
44.3% 27,211 25,169 

1.8% 3,274 2,021 
13.4% 288,203 64,552 

8,236 (8,236) 

71,925 (71 ,925) 

72.2% 
33,656 

23.1% 12,230 

59,171 (59,171) 

146 (146) 

95% 139,478 (93,592) 
35.5% $ 3,034,820 $ 636,963 



City of Dillingham 
Revenues and Expenditures As of August 31, 2013 

Preliminary Figures 

Previous Year 
Year to Date 8/31/2012 IINC/(DEC) 

EXPENDITURES: Budget- FY13 Aug-13 Actual - 8/31/13 Percent Actual Last Year 
General Fund Expenditures 

City Council $ 72,576 $ 2,078 $ 11,874 16.4% $ 2,675 $ 9,199 
City Clerk 135,549 7,530 15,966 11.8% 16,587 (621) 
Administration 303,750 22,111 38,974 12.8% 54,915 (15,941) 
Finance 588,161 48,241 89,838 15.3% 80,532 9,306 
Legal 90,000 787 7,495 8.3% 45,501 (38,006) 
Insurance 106,016 500 0.5% 500 
Non-Departmental 197,950 9,906 20,871 10.5% 55,644 (34,773) 
Planning 149,566 10,007 14,501 9.7% 13,247 1,255 
Public Safety Administration 179,141 16,752 27,160 15.2% 39,406 (12,246) 
Dispatch 452,639 29,049 56,771 12.5% 67,741 (10,970) 
Patrol 848,754 45,280 100,082 11.8% 75,521 24,562 
I nvestigations/W AANT 22,158 (22, 158) 
Corrections 613,386 38,577 73,359 12.0% 71,486 1,872 
DMV 87,938 6,813 11,932 13.6% 11 '108 825 
Animal Control Officer 131,116 6,813 11,932 9.1% 28,138 (16,206) 
Fire 272,879 10,216 18,623 6.8% 19,612 (989) 
K-9 14,322 (14,322) 
PSIT 32,000 795 795 2.5% 6,259 (5,464) 
Public Works Administration 223,562 6,796 13,913 6.2% 32,722 (18,809) 
Building and Grounds 314,813 23,777 38,384 12.2% 81,202 (42,818) 
Shop 211,918 23,814 44,304 20.9% 31,714 12,590 
Street 617,911 51' 142 84,706 13.7% 87,733 (3,027) 
Foreclosures 2,169 576 250 326 
Library 132,478 10,914 18,778 14.2% 21,930 (3,152) 
Meeting Hall above Fire Station 3,680 261 357 9.7% 434 (77) 
City School 1,300,000 325,000 25.0% 325,000 
Transfers to Other Funds 979,087 0.0% 

Total General Fund Expenditures 8,044,870 373,826 1,026,692 12.8% 1,205,838 (179,146) 

S[;!ecial Revenue Funds Ex[;!enditures 
Nushagak Fish Tax 460,139 0.0% 
Water 217,781 20,508 28,887 13.3% 23,303 5,584 
Sewer 250,598 14,892 27,562 11.0% 48,824 (21 ,261) 
Landfill 354,228 26,749 50,298 14.2% 64,092 (13,795) 
Dock 593,419 45,709 111,203 18.7% 103,544 7,659 
Boat Harbor 242,414 21,318 38,918 16.1% 48,771 (9,853) 
E-911 Service 7,700 549 549 7.1% 22,232 (21 ,683) 
Senior Center (Grant) 118,290 9,032 22,789 19.3% 27,548 (4,759) 
Senior Center (Non-Grant) 288,175 10,724 24,826 8.6% 50,036 (25,211) 

Total Special Revenue Fund Expenditures 2,532,744 149,482 305,031 12.0% 388,350 (83,319) 

Debt Service Fund 1,176,090 302,295 (302,295) 
Asset Forfeiture Fund 
Dock and Harbor Capital Project Fund 60,577 67,366 48,407 18,959 
Road and Streets Capital Project Fund 
WasteWater Treatment Plant 2,000,000 21,033 1,371,014 68.6% 1,023 1,369,992 
Force Main 125 405 486,211 (485,806) 
School Bond Project 1,038 1,398 1,398 
Library Grants 52,893 1,765 3,468 6.6% 502 2,966 
Library Roof 243,000 0.0% 
JAG Grant 
E911 Critical System Upgrades 
BBEDC (Various Projects) 27,934 31,315 
Ambulance Reserve Capital Project Fund 242,000 0.0% 
Equipment Replacement Capital Project Fund 
Mary Carlson Estate Permanent Fund 6,996 125 232 3.3% 420 (189) 
Landfill Oxidation 1,663 2,073 
Landfill Phase 3 1,208 1,208 

Total Capital Project Funds Expenditures 3,720,979 115,468 1,478,477 39.7% 838,858 605,024 
Total All Expenditures $ 14,298,593 $ 638,775 $ 2,810,200 19.7% $ 2,433,046 $ 342,559 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ 95,296 $ 2,239,287 $ 2,305,793 $ 601,774 $ 294,403 



General Fund 
Nushagak Fish Tax 
Water 
Waste/Water 
Landfill 
Dock 
Boat Harbor 
E-911 Service 
Asset Forfeitures Fund 
Senior Center 
Debt Service 
Dock and Harbor Capital Project Fund 
Road and Streets Capital Project Fund 
WasteWater Treatment Plant 
Water & Sewer Capital Project Fund 
School Bond Project Capital Project Fund 
JAG Grant 
Library Grants (Books, Erate, etc.) 
Library Roof 
Equipment Replacement Capital Project Fund 
Ambulance Reserve Capital Project Fund 
Mary Carlson Estate Permanent Fund 
Landfill Capital Project Fund 

Total 

City of Dillingham 
Revenues and Expenditures As of August 31, 2013 

Preliminary Figures 

Fund Bal. FY'14 FY'13 
6/30/2012 Revenues Ex(!enditures 

(Unaudited) 

$ 3,372,485 $ 3,273,141 $ 1,026,692 
79,524 4,831 0 
20,044 29,438 28,887 

40,147 27,562 
39,712 50,298 

1 '179,047 135,605 111,203 
- 32,031 38,918 

25,145 13,317 549 
9,035 - -

- 57,675 22,789 
- - -

(18,386) - 67,366 
- - -
- 1,444,211 1,398 

(218,388) 33,656 1,398 
393,520 10 3,468 

- - -

-
57,036 - -

498,858 - -
397,385 - 232 
172,044 - 1,208 

$ 5,967,349 $ 5,103,774 $ 1,381,965 

Add or(-) Fund Bal. 
Fund Bal 8/31/2013 

Unaudited 

$2,246,449 $ 5,618,934 
4,831 84,355 

551 20,595 
12,584 12,584 

(10,586) (10,586) 
24,403 1,203,450 
(6,886) (6,886) 
12,768 37,913 

- 9,035 
34,886 34,886 

- -
(67,366) (85,752) 

- -
1,442,814 1,442,814 

32,258 (186,130) 
(3,457) 390,063 

- -

- 57,036 
- 498,858 

(232) 397,153 
(1,208) 170,836 

$3,721,809 $ 9,689,158 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

September 24, 2013 

Rose Loera, City Manager 

Sonja Marx, Librarian 

September Monthly Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

This fall began a busy school year with 372 students and teachers coming to the library 
within four weeks to check out reading materials during their class time. Our school 
librarian has done a great job orienting the students and staff to the library and getting 
them off to a great school year. It is wonderful to see the Dillingham Public Library used 
as a resource center to encourage the students in their reading. A "drop box" is set up 
at the middle/high school for students to return materials there for their convenience. 

September has been a busy month as I end my three months of jury service. Due to 
reporting for jury duty & other staff needing to take time off, we have had to adjust our 
schedules. Thankfully, we did not need to close the library due to being short-staffed. 

I had requested and was given an extension on the PLA final grant report that was due 
September 15

t. This consists of three documents (over 25 pages) of reporting statistics 
for the last year. Thanks to Abigail for her technical help in drawing the information from 
our library software, Alexandria; & thanks to Stephanie for gathering the financial data. 

The Library Board meeting was canceled. There is an open seat on the Board; our 
Board President, Brian Laurent took a job in Juneau. We are very thankful for all his 
work with the Board this last year; much was accomplished under his leadership. 

The roof project is complete and it looks great! Work has begun on the ramp and steps. 

Library Stat report for August 261
h- September 21 5

\ 2013: 

Patron Visits: 2,987 Computer Use: 787 Story Hour: 106 
Other Visits: 382 Museum Use: 30 Videoconferencing: 1 

Approximately 15.5 volunteer hours logged 

Library was closed Monday, September 2"d for Labor Day 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

September 23, 2013 

Rose Loera I City Manager 

Jean Barrett I Port Director 

September Monthly Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

The tide has turned on another busy summer on the Nushagak, the fish and fisherman 
have found their way home and those of us who are still here breathe a sigh of relief. 
We made it through another season none the worse for wear, although we had our ups 
and downs with the usual maintenance issues, and one extraordinary event at the dock 
that had us closing it down for repairs. For the most part, for what we have to work with, 
we held up very well to the daily grind of another fishing season on the mighty 
Nushagak. 

Harbor 
The East side floats have been out of the water now for over a month. We have been 
doing some much needed maintenance on the float arm floats that are 25+ years old 
and in need of some TLC. We have done some welding on them and are planning to 
coat them with a rubberized material to help keep them in usable condition for a few 
more years. This maintenance will continue thru the winter months. We are hoping to 
have the rest of the floats out of the water next week. Maybe we will beat the ice this 
year! 

August was way busier than we ever anticipated, the Silver fishery was huge this year 
and the boats that hung around to fish it were very successful. Copper River Seafoods 
out of Togiak was the lone buyer in the bay and used the city ice machine to supply ice 
to the fleet of almost 30 boats. We sold somewhere in the vicinity of 60 tons of ice to 
them alone, which breaks out to 60 tons = 175 totes; 175 totes x $50 per tote = 
$8,750.00 in ice sales for just the month of August! 

This is more ice than we have sold over the last 6 years combined! The only drawback 
to this is that when there is a demand for this amount of ice, our machine cannot keep 
up, because it has been dialed down so it does not produce its maximum amount of ice. 
I will be inquiring to the manufacturer whether this is something that can be changed for 
the future so we can keep up with that many boats, and at what cost it would be to the 
city. 



Dock 
By now, I am sure everyone has heard about the near disaster that took place on and to 
the City dock in August. I am not going to recount the whole thing blow by blow, but I 
am going to say we were fortunate to have been able to have a very competent crew 
detour into Dillingham on their way to Togiak and make the necessary emergency 
repairs before we had to live with the problem any longer than we did. I would also like 
to thank the city's public works crew who were a huge help in making the repair happen. 

The status of the dock at this time is stable and we are waiting for compaction to take 
place so we could go ahead and finish the cutting of the piling and the installation of the 
bull rail that will cap off the top of the new piling. 

We had in our budget $12,000 for new topping gravel for the dock as it has turned into a 
muddy mess over the past few years. We purchased the crushed gravel from Horizon 
contractors and they delivered us 300 yards of some very nice rock. 300 yards is a lot of 
rock, but when sitting on the dock it was about half of what was needed. I met with City 
manager Loera and asked if we could double the amount purchased in order to finish 
the job, her question was how often has this had to be done? To my recollection in the 8 
years the dock has been used we have not re-topped it. There was some rock replaced 
after a particularly big storm in 07', but never has it been re-topped since it was new. 
Our decision was to go ahead and purchase another 300 yards and to do a midyear 
budget adjustment so we could get a good coating of a nice clean rock on the surface of 
the dock. 

Interns and summer employees 
Once again we were fortunate enough to have two summer workers thru the BBEDC 
employment and intern program, Virginia Bobbitt spent her 5th summer at the small boat 
harbor and is a very important piece of the puzzle. I wouldn't want to find out what we 
would do without her. Thanks Ginny. This summer we also had Darrin Napoli as the 
summer youth intern. Darrin was a great hand and was very helpful. He learned 
customer service and was a great hand in keeping things going at the harbor. 

Other things on the plate ... 
I have been busy over the past two months giving driving tests for those drivers either 
needing new COL's or having to remove the off systems restriction from their current 
license. I did 3 last week alone. The state DMV office in Anchorage will be out here in 
early October to give me my yearly evaluation. 

-1 am working on travel plans for the yearly Harbormaster/Port convention which will 
take place in Valdez this year. These conventions are a great place to see other 
harbors and get ideas for improving ours. 
- I am working on a plan to re-key all of the city buildings, which is much needed! We 
have an uncontrollable amount of keys and cores and who knows how many keys are 
out that are not in the hands of city workers. I hope to have this finalized before the end 
of this year. 

That's all from the Port department. 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

September 25, 2013 

Rose Loera, City Manager 

Jody Seitz, Director of Planning and Grants 

September Monthly Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

Emergency Preparedness: Attended 3 day workshop for Small Community Emergency 
Planning (SCERP). Attended the Mass Dispensing Workshop to prepare for a medical 
emergency such as a need for mass vaccinations. We are continuing to meet and work 
on the SCERP. 

Garbage: Working on clearing the right of way at Birch Lane and addressing the 
burning of garbage in the area below Fairview Subdivision. 

GIS: Renewing contract with Alaska Map Company to continue with projects. 

Grants and Projects: 
• AEA grant was not approved. We were told our application was very competitive .. 

AEA had $10.7 million which it distributed to less than 10 applicants. The cost of 
energy and energy demand were two very important criteria for making their 
selection. There were 84 applications. We were encouraged to apply again next 
year. AEA says this year was a first attempt to show the need for the program. 

• ADEC for Landfill - Need to demonstrate that gasifier will result in improved water 
quality at the landfill. Met with EPA (which provides the funding for the aDEC loan 
program) about this. Will send information to EPA about comparable systems and 
their water quality impacts. 

• USDA grants/loan program for Landfill- sent in pre-application material. Waiting for 
review. 

• ADEC 28305- for new water source. Have negotiated a change of scope of work to 
be allowed to make some forward progress on our water projects. This grant expires 
next summer. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 



• ADEC 28306 will require a legislative re-appropriation to be able to change the 
scope for that funding (3.0 million). This would likely be for upgrading the water and 
sewer mains in the Downtown Streets as per the 2003 Water and sewer Master 
Plan. 

Land Use Permits: Worked closely with City Manager and Project Manager to improve 
our process for obtaining land use permit applications. We now issue a stop work order 
which the Police Department hand delivers in the form of a letter; and we follow up with 
additional certified and regular letters via the Post Office, and in the future, if necessary, 
fines. The Planning Department advertises in the Bristol Bay Times as well. This 
method is proving very effective in getting compliance with the code. 

Long Term Encroachment Permits: The Dillingham Liquor Store will be submitting an 
application for an encroachment permit for a water line tie in to the water main on Main 
Street. 

Material Sites: Met with code committee .Have been charged with brining forward some 
options . Hoping to have some help from Chris Beck who is very familiar with ways of 
addressing material site development. 

Ordinances: Codes which the Planning Commission is working on: Subidivision 
Access, and Land Use permit to reduce the permitting burden and establish a minimum 
acreage. The State Floodplain Coordinator has also requested changes to the 
floodplain permit code. 

Plats: Vacating second Avenue West and brining the disposal of the old Job Serivce 
site to the Council for approval as part of the Port Land Exchange. 

Road Projects. Still trying to get the area in front of the Post Office and the path 
between D Street and Kenny Wren Road into the state's Downtown Streets or 
Kanakanak Road projects. 

Subdivision Access Committee: Planning commission met on September 21 with 
Norman Heyano regarding road safety issues and reviewed legal advice and other 
municipal codes regarding private access roads. 

Subdivisions: Crystal Subdivision is in progress. The landowner has provide a 
preliminary plan set for Charlee Road, which is to be a City road. Will review with Public 
Safety, Fire Department and Public Works, ADOT, and Nushagak. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

September 24, 2013 

City Manager Rose Loera 

Chief Dan Pasquariello 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

Subject: September 2013 Council Report (reporting period 8/27113 to 9/24/13) 

Police: 

•!• 451 Calls for service 
•!• 46 Incident reports 
•!• 15 Persons arrested 
•!• 25 Title 47/Protective custody 
•!• 22 Citations issued 

We have filled the last patrol officer position. The newly hired officer has over 20 years of 
experience as a police officer, with 4 of those years being in Alaska. The officer will begin work 
the first week of October. The patrol division, and the entire Public Safety Department, is now 
fully staffed. 

We still have an officer at the Police Academy in Fairbanks. He is halfway through and will 
return in November. 

The two new patrol cars have been ordered from the dealership. Since they are special 
purpose police vehicles they are being shipped from the factory in Chicago. Their estimated 
arrival date in Alaska is mid-November. 

The Chief attended Tribal Healing to Wellness Court training with members of Curyung Tribal 
Council, the School District, BBNA, and the District Court. Our plan is to develop a Tribal 
Juvenile Wellness Court that will serve all juveniles in Dillingham. 

The Department (City) was awarded $98,332 from the Alaska Department of Homeland 
Security. This was from the grant application the Council approved in the August meeting. This 
amount is for the City camera upgrades. It appears that the emergency response boat was not 
funded. Once the paperwork is finished we will be asking the Council for acceptance approval 
at next month's meeting. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 2 



The project of revising the penalty and fine schedules for the Municipal Code is completed and 
on this Council agenda for introduction. 

Corrections: 

•!• 44 Total Inmates 
•!• 25 Title 4 7 /Protective custody 

We are still in the process of obtaining an automated fingerprint system for the jail. 

We have been organizing persons with court ordered Community Work Service to complete 
projects around the community. CWS workers have cleaned the downtown cemetery, cleaned 
up the outside of the Public Safety Building, and assisted with the Animal Shelter move. 

Dispatch: 

•!• 576 
•!• 78% 
•!• 15% 
•!• 5% 
•!• 3% 

Nothing reported. 

Animal Control: 

•!• 1 
•!• 5 
•!• 5 
•!• 3 
•!• 4 

Calls for service 
Dispatched to Dillingham Police 
Dispatched to Alaska State Troopers 
Dispatched to EMS/Dillingham Fire 
Dispatched to Dillingham Animal Control 

Dogs/cats impounded 
dogs/cats returned to owners 
Rabies/Parvo shot given 
dogs/cats euthanized 
citations issued 

The Animal Shelter is now located in the National Guard Armory building at the Boat Harbor. 
Construction and remodeling of the facility is still in progress. Once construction is complete we 
will host an Open House for the public. 

The Shelter Volunteer program is up and running. There are currently 4 volunteers, with 
hopefully more to come. These volunteers help with day to day care of the animals, and also 
care for the animals on the Animal Control Officer's day off. 

•!• 88 
•!• 64 
•!• 7 
•!• 6 

Nothing reported. 

registration/titles 
drivers licenses 

commercial driver's licenses 
road tests 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 2 of 2 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

September 24, 2013 

Rose Loera 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

From: Stephanie McCumber, Fire Department Office Assistant 

Subject: September 2013 Department Head Report 

Summarization of EMS Responses in September 
• Total of 18 Ambulance Transports 

o 4 Chest Pains 
o 2 Traumatic Injuries 
o 3 Death 
o 2 Abdominal Pain 
o 4 Seizure/Convulsion 
o 1 Diabetic Problem 
o 1 Heart Problem 
o 1 Other 

Summarization of Fire Responses in September 
• There were no Fire responses for the month of September. 

PROJECTS COMPLETED 
• The September Combination Meeting was held for water rescue. We reviewed all of our 

water rescue equipment and the protocols for implementing a water rescue. 
• At the Fire Meeting we reviewed Engineer operations and learned about drafting. 
• The Rescue Meeting was held for cold weather rescues, specifically hypothermic 

patients. 
• We had our Fall BBQ at Lake Road Station. We had a good turn-out from our Members, 

Doctors and Nurses. 

ON-GOING PROJECTS 
• The Fire Office Assistant is inventorying all apparatus and working with members to 

create a correct inventory of our equipment on and off the apparatus. 
• The Fire Office Assistant is gathering all information on the Department's SCOTT Air 

Pack Bottles for inventory and Hydro-testing information. 
• On September 25, employees from various departments will attend a Small Community 

Emergency Response Plan (SCERP) training at BBNA. The training is given by the 
Department of Homeland Security for the State of Alaska. It will aid in our efforts to 
complete our own SCERP for Dillingham. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

September 23, 2013 

Rose Loera 

Ida Noonkesser 

Staff Report 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
A L A S K A 

MEMORANDUM 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

During the month of August, the Senior Center served 4 79 congregate meals to 58 
individuals, 197 home delivered meals to 11 individuals, gave 351 assisted rides to 31 
individuals, and 205 to unassisted rides to 35 individuals. Aleknagik transportation 
services included 356 rides for the month of August. I also helped five elder with 
personal paperwork. 

We had three renters in the month on August. The Pinochle player's group continues to 
rent the dining room every Friday, and every third Saturday Quilters rent the Senior 
Center. 

Anna Mae Bartholomew who works for (BBNA) Aging & Disability Resource Specialty 
held a free bingo August 22 and supplied prizes for the winning elders. 

Melanie and Monica came and did a research study on Parkinson's disease from 
August 19th through August 21 5t. They did an awesome job and many elders came and 
did their surveys. 

Later this month we will be hosting a flu shot clinic for elders on September 26th from 
Noon-1pm. 

We are planning another fund-raising garage sale in October and are preparing for it 
this month. 

· Our next Advisory Board meeting is October gth at 1 pm in the dining room at the Senior 
Center. 

City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 
Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 



Mayor 
Alice Ruby 

Manager 
Rose Loera 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

CITY OF 

DILLINGHAM 
ALASKA 

MEMORANDUM 

September 25, 2013 

Manager Rose Loera 

Francisco (Pancho) Garcia, Public Works Director 

September Staff Report 

Dillingham City Council 
Brenda Akelkok 

Chris Maines 
Bob Himschoot 

Keggie Tubbs 
Tracy Hightower 

Paul Liedberg 

Streets Department: Finished the sewer outfall line and covered it back up with rip rap. 
The crew has been grading roads, filling in pot holes in town, and now is mixing the 
winter sand with salt. The excavator was moved to the harbor to help with unloading the 
rip rap that was received from Horizon Contractors. 

Shop Department: Have been keeping up with equipment breakdowns. The landfill 
loader, 821 C loader, 800 hyster, and police #98 are now in service. They picked the 
metal, vehicle tires and equipment chains from the dock. 

landfill Department: Keeping up with waste and cleaning the land fill. They also have 
been working on getting all of the compliance issue taken care of. As of now 4 of the 5 
compliance issues have been taking care of, the only thing left is to get RALO and 
hazardous waste training and all will be completed. There will hopefully be a class for 
both of these training here in town in November. 

Water/Wastewater Department: They worked on hooking up a new water service to 
Kevin Johnson. They also flushed and winterized all of the fire hydrants as well as 
winterizing the harbor water lines. The operators have been doing their monthly water 
and lagoon sampling as well as washing down the lift stations and keeping the water 
treatment plant in working order. 

Building and Grounds Department: The crew finished working on replacing the siding 
on the dock office. They washed the City Hall building and cleaned the windows as well 
as starting on washing off the moss off of the senior center roof and to treat it so the 
moss will not grow back. They have been working on some of the boilers getting ready 
for winter. 

Our Vision. By 2015 to have an infrastructure that supports a sustainable, diversified and growing 
economy. * We will take a leadership role and partner with others to achieve economic development and 
other common goals. * We will develop a high quality City workforce to serve the community. * We will 
promote excellence in education. 
City of Dillingham Page 1 of 1 



NOT YET APPROVED 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEttTING 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 

The Code Review Committee met: on Thursday, September 19, 2013, in the Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Chair Paul Liedberg called the meeting to order at 5:30p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

Committee Members present: 
Paul Liedberg, Council Member, Chair 
Mayor Alice Ruby 
Rose Loera, City Manager 
Chris Maines, Council Member 
Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Guest(s): 
Mike Megli, GM/CEO Nushagak Cooperative 
Attorney Brooks Chandler 
Carol Shade, Finance Director 
Sonja Marx, Librarian 
Abigail Flynn, Librarian Asst. 
Dan Pasquariello, Chief of Police 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Meeting of August 8, 2013 

MOTION: Mayor Ruby moved and Chris Maines seconded the motion to approve the 
minutes of August 8, 2013. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Manager Loera moved and Mayor Ruby seconded the motion to approve the 
agenda as presented. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Review Suggested Library Code Changes- Ordinance No. 2013-18 

MOTION: Rose Loera moved and Alice Ruby seconded the motion to recommend 
Ordinance No. 2013-18 to the City Council. 

City Clerk Williams commented that the collection of library fines would be covered under 
the Collections Committee and a policy and procedure set up. 

City of Dillingham 
Code Review Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2013 
Page 1 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETINiG 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

B. Point of Sale for Assessing City Sales Tax 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 

Manager Loera reported she had been in contact with Nushagak Cooperative and business 
owner who had recently been audited by the City on his sales tax returns. The purpose of 
the meeting was to inform them that the City was gearing up to enforce the assessment of 
sales tax for several services originating in Dillingham, but provided outside City limits, that 
were not being taxed as allowed in the City's code. Nushagak had asked for 
reconsideration on collecting sales tax on telephone service, noting the communities of 
Manokotak and Clarks Point already have a sales tax in place. 

Mike Megli reported that the telephone switches located in Manokotak and Clarks Point 
provided their own dial tone and the switching took place in those switches and none of it 
originated in Dillingham. Aleknagik had their own sales tax, but they had utilities exempted 
in their code. Electricity was generated in Dillingham and distributed to customers in 
Dillingham and Aleknagik, but Dillingham sales tax was not being assessed outside City 
limits. 

Attorney Brooks Chandler commented, as a matter of public policy, the City should not want 
to subject nonresidents to a double tax, if they are being taxed by their own village, and 
could change the code to accommodate that. The tax would be on the flat monthly fee for 
telephone service even if they lived outside the City. There was an exemption in code for 
long distance calls. The fact that the switching gear was not located in the City was a gray 
area, but could be clarified in the code. The fact that Nushagak had its main office in 
Dillingham made these items subject to tax. 

Follow up: 
• Mike Megli/Nushagak to analyze % of electric sales sold outside Dillingham limits to 

Aleknagik by type of users, residential or commercial and have the information 
available by the next Code meeting; and 

• Establish a workshop to lay out the Committee's recommendations. 

Manager Loera noted that Jeff Liboff had asked the City to change the code so the City 
could not tax outside of City limits. 

C. Review Public Safety Fines- Ordinance No. 2013-19 

Manager Loera reported that the City's code did not meet the State of Alaska's criteria for 
identifying fine amounts for citations issued in Dillingham, and as a result, revenues were 
not being distributed to Dillingham, but retained with the State. The fines were listed as up 
to a certain amount (usually $300), which necessitated the individual having to go to court 
and the court issuing an amount. 

The City working with its Attorney had created one table in Chapter 1.20.010 General 
penalty, listing all fines and assessing a flat fee for each incident, $75 or $300, depending 

City of Dillingham 
Code Review Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 

on the severity of the violation, higher amount for health or safety issues, and did away with 
the graduating fine schedule. 

Additional comments: 
• The advantage of this table was putting all fines in one area, making it easier to 

search. 
• The new code did not address where someone may have to go to jail. It was for 

minor offenses only. 
• When someone received a citation, they could either pay it or contest it in court. 
• The Court would collect the fines on behalf of the City and attach a surcharge for 

processing the fine that would go to the Court system. 

Attorney Chandler noted that the State of Alaska Court System's change in rules last April 
was the impetus behind the ordinance, and other municipalities throughout Alaska were 
going through a similar exercise as the City of Dillingham. He noted each act of violation 
and every day which the violation occurred could constitute a separate offense, as noted in 
the new ordinance 1.20.010 C. He noted the code identified the personnel that could write 
citations, it was significantly limited, and would primarily use the public safety department 
since they were set up to issue citations. 

Discussion: 
• voiced concern over the citations for subdivision and land development violations, 

such as parking requirements, that it should be a different process; Attorney 
answered there was nothing in the code that would prohibit the City from first writing 
a letter warning of a possible citation if the situation was not remedied by a certain 
date; and 

• asked if a cap could be applied on the flat fee per day; Attorney answered it would 
be more advisable to exercise discretion and good judgment, noting the code didn't 
require that every day there was a violation that there be a fine; 

• noted the Collections Committee would be reviewing the collection process for 
permits and would set up a policy and procedure that would include issuing a letter. 

MOTION: Manager Loera moved and Mayor Ruby seconded the motion to recommend 
Ordinance No. 2013-19 to the City Council. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

D. Review Inconsistencies between DMC and the Port of Dillingham Terminal 
Tariff No. 1 (Staff will provide a verbal report at the meeting.) 

City Clerk Williams reported there had not been enough time to work on this item, but would 
hope to have a presentation for the next meeting. 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review Transient Lodging (Bed) Tax 

City of Dillingham 
Code Review Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCil 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 19,2013 

Mayor Ruby commented this issue should stay in Code, did not favor a separate sub
committee, and recommended between now and the next Code Committee: 1) define the 
issues to be addressed; 2) staff to outline options for ways to regulate the solid waste sites 
(options are land use regulations, separate zoning ordinance, etc.); 3) review the draft 
issues in October and have them for public review at that meeting; 4) take the options to the 
stakeholder groups, could meet with developers at one meeting, regular citizens at another 
meeting; 5) at next code meeting choose which option based on concerns from developers 
and citizen; and 6) by December or January have a presentation for the Council. The 
process should take the Committee back to the Comprehensive Plan so whatever 
regulation was adopted it would meet the objectives of the Comprehensive Plan. 

Discussion: 
• suggested using the services of Chris Beck to help identify the options, because he 

had the work experience assisting other municipalities on this same issue; 
• recommended having the Planning Director involved, and the Planning Commission 

could be included in the list of stakeholders; 
• noted some of the issues were whether to allow operating at night, requiring permits 

be in place before starting the project, water table runoff, buffering; 
• recommended asking the Council if they wanted to appropriate money for consulting 

services for this project, and add it to a mid-year budget review; and 
• noted staff could work on identifying the issues and have a rough draft for a special 

meeting, one topic agenda, to be scheduled for October 22, and invite stakeholders 
to get their input. 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

There were no public or committee comments. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Approval Date: ___________ _ 

City of Dillingham 
Code Review Committee Meeting 

Paul Liedberg, Chair 

September 19, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
DILLINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 
CODE REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 

City Clerk Williams noted during the discussion of the business licenses a member of the 
public had recommended increasing the lodging tax to bring in more revenue. She also 
noted she had a lot of people staying at her B&Bs that worked for government agencies and 
should she be assessing a sales tax if they did not have a tax waiver. 

Mayor Ruby reported back when the transient lodging and alcohol sales were set at a 
higher rate of 10%, the Council had been told State Statute prohibited the City from 
targeting one item for a higher rate, and as a result had identified two items. 

Questions: 
• Can the City raise one of the two items without the other? The Court ruled that the 

City couldn't single out alcohol for a higher differential sales tax rate. The City could 
raise the transient lodging tax and maintain alcohol at its current rate, but couldn't do 
the reverse, and it would have to be subject to voter approval. 

• Should the transient lodging tax be increased? The current rate of 1 0% was about as 
high as anywhere in the State. The City was not interested in increasing it at this 
time, but might down the road look at increasing the tax for both alcohol and 
transient lodging. 

• Should a bona fide government employee pay the transient lodging tax with their per 
diem? The rules applied the same as for sales tax. It was the B& B owner's 
responsibility to ask for a certificate of exemption if the govt. agency was going to 
ask for a waiver from the lodging tax. The govt. agency would be paying the lodging 
to get a waiver, not the individual. 

Discussion: 
• suggested creating a flyer with the University something on the idea of "Doing 

Business in Dillingham" and include items such as who was required to get a 
business license, when does a business file sales tax. 

B. Review Title 6, Business Licensing, Chapter 6.04, Transient Vendors 

City Clerk Williams reported that back in June the Council passed an ordinance to waive the 
business license if revenues were less than $1 OK. In the process of reviewing the material, 
the attorney had suggested this section on transient vendors was no longer needed. It 
dated back to 1977 when there was such a thing as traveling salesmen, which didn't really 
exist on the level it did at one time. The subject of transient vendors was also covered in 
the regular business licensing section. 

MOTION: Chris Maines and Mayor Ruby moved to recommend to the Council that this 
chapter be repealed. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

C. Consider Regulating Material Sites 

City of Dillingham 
Code Review Committee Meeting 

September 19, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

MEETING MINUTES 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

The Finance and Budget Committee met on Monday, September 23, 2013, at the City Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Bob Himschoot called the meeting to order at 5:36p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL 

Committee Members present: 
Bob Himschoot, Council Member, Chair 
Alice Ruby, Mayor 
Keggie Tubbs, Council Member 
Rose Loera, City Manager 
Carol Shade, Finance Director 

Tracy Hightower, Council Member- absent and excused 

Ill. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Minutes of August 26, 2013 

MOTION: Carol Shade moved and Mayor Ruby seconded the motion to approve the minutes of 
August 26, 2013. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOTION: Carol Shade moved and Manager Loera seconded the motion to approve the agenda 
as presented. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

V. STAFF REPORTS 

A. Review of Financial Statements 

Finance Director Shade reviewed the August financial statements and noted the following: 
• Alcohol sales tax filings - attributed the small amount to untimely tax filings finally submitted 

in September; before the close of the fiscal years, revenues would be included in the correct 
fiscal year; 

• PERS on behalf - with the new payroll system the accrual can be recorded when the payroll 
was processed; the State will send regular updates which are adjusted to actual by the end of 
the year; the expense and revenue amounts match, but required to account for it; 

• Payments for revenue sharing and PIL T were received; payments are being posted more 
regularly as bank statements are downloaded daily; 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting 
City of Dillingham 

September 23, 2013 
Page 1 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

• Nushagak Fish Tax- fairly confident the taxes are representative of this year; 
• Water and sewer special revenue fund transfers in are recorded quarterly; revenue funds are 

basically what has been invoiced; 
• Landfill, dock, harbor - special fund revenues are a mixture of what's been received and 

what's been invoiced; and 
• Capital projects - water treatment plant showed $1 OOK more in revenues than expenses; still 

in the process of balancing out grants. 

Discussion: 
• asked to clarify the City School entry of $1.3M noting $50K was earmarked for major 

maintenance; suggested reviewing previous accounting entries for major maintenance prior 
to the last couple of years when $1 OOK was put toward the school bond payment in lieu of 
major maintenance, and to report back at the next meeting; 

• commented the Council and School Board had received a copy of the major maintenance list 
that was recommended by the School Facility Committee; and 

• commented will take this up at the School Facility Committee meeting to have a process in 
place (suggested a policy) to account for the use of the major maintenance funds in order to 
receive the $50K that was allocated in the budget. 

Manager Loera reported the Senior Advisory Commission was asking management to look at raising 
the pay for the cook, attributing the constant turnover in this position to low pay. The City's wages 
were in the middle compared to other local agencies. She noted other Senior Center staff filled in 
when there was an absence in that position. 

Discussion: 
• asked if it was a full-time position instead of a% time position if it might stay filled; answered 

wasn't sure, but would have to reevaluate how the remainder of the time would be filled. 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Fiscal Policy Development 

1. Overall Rate Review 

a. Water and Wastewater 

Finance Director reviewed the following items that came up at the last meeting: 

• Asked if the City went to a flat rate, with the existing rate structure with multiples classes, how 
would existing customers fall into the new categories, and would the bottom line total after 
the restructure be the same or more than what the City was currently collecting? 

The consultants (FCS Group) had prepared the scenarios by first identifying the revenue 
requirement, and then they developed the rates based on that assumption. That scenario had 
already been presented. The City would want to have that same scenario, but for low-income 
users. It would be based on 50 low income water and wastewater users, single-family 
dwellings, and assume a 25% discount. 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting 
City of Dillingham 

September 23, 2013 
Page 2 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

• Is there the possibility of increasing the commercial burden, and lessening the residential 
burden? 

The scenarios were done based on cost of services. To increase the commercial burden, the 
current rate structure could be increased, because it already had it built it. The commercial 
accounts was already paying more than the residential; could go with a flat increase. 

• Asked for scenarios to cover operations and maintenance. 

The consultants based the revenue requirement on covering 0 & M expenses, as reflected in 
some of the scenarios. Those scenarios with the higher increases included capital projects. 
If the capital projects were excluded, the scenario still contained operations and maintenance 
expenses. 

Finance Director Shade noted the consultants would be preparing three more scenarios: make 
percentages equal 1 00% over the next five years, make the percentage increase 80%, and low 
income discount. 

The consultants had already more than doubled the amount of scenarios they normally presented. 
They could not be available for the November 7 Council meeting, but staff suggested Council 
members could attend a presentation October 28 at the Finance and Budget meeting. The 
consultants were hoping to finalize their work by the end of the year; the contract had a timeline of 
September 2012. The granting agency was funding half of the study, and before additional 
payments could be made, the City would need to provide an explanation for the delay in finalizing 
the study. 

Discussion: 
• commented if the City set its rate structure to cover 100% O&M costs and then chose to 

apply the low income rebate, this would require a transfer in from general funds, essentially 
the special revenue fund would not be covering all expenses; 

• noted the problem with the scenarios presented at the workshop was the concern the users 
couldn't afford the increase, so asked for another option, chose 12.5% (suggested by the 
analyst for the lending agency; the grant would require the City to designate money in the 
general funds to ensure the City could make its loan payments from the water and sewer 
funds) assuming the City would find other sources for capital; something reasonably 
affordable and to cover O&M expenses; 

• recommended a public outreach campaign to all the effected customers to explain the reason 
for the increases; 

• recommended the City preserve the formula used to calculate the rate increase in the 
resolution to memorialize it for future reviews; and 

• spoke in favor of inviting the Council to their Oct. 28 Finance and Budget meeting for a 
presentation by the consultants with the goal of coming out of the meeting with a 
recommendation to the full Council. 

B. Proposed Life Insurance Change 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting 
City of Dillingham 

September 23, 2013 
Page 3 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

MOTION: Keggie Tubbs moved and Mayor Ruby seconded the motion to recommend the 
proposed coverage in column 2 for all employees. 

City had made a commitment in the City Manager's contract for 1.5x their annual salary, but the 
City's current insurance plan did not allow for a different plan for one individual. Any tax imposed 
would only affect those making more than the threshold of $60K. The recommendation would be to 
cover all employees at 1.5x salary up to a maximum of $200,000. The City Manager would inform 
the unions of the increased benefit. 

GENERAL CONSENT: The motion passed without objection. 

Finance Director Shade referred the members to the analyses done on the collection of real and 
personal property taxes, noting the chart showed 50% had been collected through September 30. 

C. Dock Update 

Manager Loera noted the insurance company was still working on the claim. The City's Attorney 
had sent off a letter to the insurance company on the behalf of the City because of their concern that 
the initial communication stated the claim would probably be an excluded coverage without first 
investigating. Insurance could be denied for normal wear and tear or faulty construction. The 
materials used had a warranty of ten years, but was showing corrosion already. 

Discussion: 
• suggested the City may want to get more active and contribute in the AMLIJIA insurance 

pool. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Options for Excess Raw Fish Revenues 

Finance Director Shade commented the City should set up a Nushagak Fish Tax Fund by resolution, 
as advised by the City's auditors. 

Discussion: 
• recommended setting up a subsidiary fund for the Borough Fund with a sunset clause, and 

the Regional Fisheries Improvement Fund; and 
• commented throughout the annexation process the City made it clear it needed the fish tax 

because it couldn't cover its operating costs, and there was the potential of losing some of its 
revenue sources; it was not meant entirely for capital projects to benefit the fisheries, and a 
portion was set aside for the Regional Fisheries Improvement Fund, but almost every service 
the City provided was related to the fisheries and the resolution could make that clarification. 

B. Audit Schedule 

Finance Director Shade provided a tentative audit schedule with a trial balance to the auditors by the 
following Monday; audit field work October 28 - November 1; first draft of the audit by November 15; 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting 
City of Dillingham 

September 23, 2013 
Page 4 of 5 



NOT YET APPROVED 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2013 

final draft by December 13; Finance and Budget Committee review December 16; presentation to 
the Council January 2(?). 

VIII. PUBLIC/COMMITTEE COMMENT(S) 

Mayor Ruby: 
• commented had visited the landfill last weekend, staff had charged her exactly what they 

should have charged, provided a receipt, was helpful and courteous; good job. 

Keggie Tubbs: 
• asked if the red junked vehicle stranded outside the gates at the landfill would be there much 

longer, had been there for about a month; and 
• commented he would be attending the October 10 Council meeting by teleconference. 

Discussion ensued over a citizen complaint about a call to dispatch about barking dogs that resulted 
in a police officer knocking on the door of the owner at 3 a.m. The issue was to be addressed in the 
MOU Committee. 

There were no other public comments. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 7:54p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Janice Williams, City Clerk 

Approval Date: __________ _ 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting 
City of Dillingham 

Bob Himschoot, Chair 

September 23, 2013 
Page 5 of 5 



PLEASE GO TO TAB IX. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Adopt Ordinance No. 2013-17, An Ordinance of the Dillingham City Council 
Amending Title 17 of the Dillingham Municipal Code to Add Section 17.33 
Establishing a Simple Procedure for Dedicating Rights-of-Way Dedicated for a 
Public Purpose 


